
MAYOR  CITY MANAGER 

Shirley Sessions Dr. Shawn Gillen 

 
CITY COUNCIL CLERK OF COUNCIL  
Barry Brown, Mayor Pro Tem Jan LeViner 

Brian West  

Jay Burke CITY ATTORNEY 
Nancy DeVetter Edward M. Hughes 

Spec Hosti 
Monty Parks  

 CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

A G E N D A  
REGULAR MEETING OF TYBEE ISLAND CITY COUNCIL 

October 27, 2022 at 6:30 PM 
Please silence all cell phones during Council Meetings 

 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Posting of Colors and Pledge of Allegiance 
     Invocation 
 
Consideration of Items for Consent Agenda  
 
Announcements 
 
Swearing in Ceremony 

1. Tybee Island Youth Council 
William Fleming 
James Fletcher 
Zoe Hamilton 
 Callen Ingram 
Peyton Jones 
Anchor Lovejoy 
Tenley Martin 
Ty Robertson 

 
Recognitions and Proclamations 

2. Proclamation:  Retired Educators Day, November 6, 2022 
 
Consideration of the approval of the minutes of the meetings of the Tybee island City Council 

3. Minutes, October 13, 2022 
4. Attachments to Minutes, October 13, 2022 

 
Citizens to be Heard:  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Maximum allowable times of 5 
minutes. 

5. Jan Will:  Train for Tybee 
6. Pat Leiby:  Indigenous People Program 

 

- Page 1 -



 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda, please come forward.  Please 
limit your comments to 3 - 5 minutes. 
 
Consideration of Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
Consideration of Bids, Contracts, Agreements and Expenditures 

7. City Hall Renovation Contract:  RW Allen Construction, LLC 
8. Southeast Corrections, LLC - Probations Services 
9. Out of State Travel Request, Tybee Island Fire Department:  Capt. Matt Bowen, 

November 1 - 2, to attend the SC Fire Academy and to use a City vehicle 
 
Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 

10.  First Reading:  2022-14, Sec 2-263. Beach Task Force - Disband and Repeal 
 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 

11. Bubba Hughes:  Proposed Ordinance, 2022-15, Hardships Exceptions - For Discussion 
Only and Referral to Planning Commission 

12. Barry Brown:  Fire Protection for all Commercial Buildings 
13. Monty Parks:  Marine Science Center Bathrooms 
14. Shawn Gillen:  HMGP Excess Funds 
15. Shawn Gillen:  Hotel Motel Water/Sewer Rates 

 
Executive Session 
     Discuss litigation, personnel and real estate  
 
Possible vote on litigation, personnel and real estate discussed in executive session 
Adjournment 
Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are 
required to contact Jan LeViner at 912.472.5080 promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations 
for those persons.   
 
*PLEASE NOTE:  Citizens wishing to speak on items listed on the agenda, other than public hearings, 

should do so during the citizens to be heard section.  Citizens wishing to place items on the council 
meeting agenda must submit an agenda request form to the City Clerk’s office by Thursday at 5:00PM 

prior to the next scheduled meeting.  Agenda request forms are available outside the Clerk’s office at City 

Hall and at www.cityoftybee.org. 
 

 

 

THE VISION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to make Tybee Island the premier beach community in which to live, work, and play.” 
 

 

 

THE MISSION OF THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 
  

“is to provide a safe, secure and sustainable environment by delivering superior services through responsible 
planning, preservation of our natural and historic resources, and partnership with our community to ensure 
economic opportunity, a vibrant quality of life, and a thriving future.” 

 

- Page 2 -

http://www.cityoftybee.org/


 

 
P.O. Box 2749 – 403 Butler Avenue, Tybee Island, Georgia 31328-2749 

(866) 786-4573 – FAX (866) 786-5737 
www.cityoftybee.org 

 

- Page 3 -



File Attachments for Item:

2. Proclamation:  Retired Educators Day, November 6, 2022

- Page 4 -Item #2.



 

 
 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND 

 

 

PROCLAMATION 
RETIRED EDUCATORS DAY 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of Georgia has proclaimed the day of Sunday, 
November 6, 2022 as Retired Educators Day in Georgia; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are more than 141,000 retired educators in Georgia, 32,000 plus of 
whom are members of the Georgia Retired Educators Association; and 
 
WHEREAS, the retired educators of Georgia donate thousands of hours of volunteer 
service and made invaluable contributions to the welfare of their respective communities 
across the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate that a day be designated for citizens to express their 
appreciation for te contributions that retired educators have made and continue to make 
for the betterment of human lives and for society; and 
 
WHEREAS, local churches will recognize those lasting contributions made by retired 
educators in this community; now 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Shirley Sessions, Mayor of Tybee Island do hereby proclaim the 
day of November 6, 2022 as “RETIRED EDUCATORS DAY” and call upon the citizens of 
Tybee Island to observe that day in an appropriate manner honoring retired educators.   
 
Given unto my hand and seal at Tybee island, Georgia on this 27th day of October 2022. 
 
 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Shirley Sessions, Mayor 
        Tybee Island, Georgia 
 
 

- Page 5 -Item #2.



File Attachments for Item:

3. Minutes, October 13, 2022

- Page 6 -Item #3.



City Council Minutes, October 13, 2022 
 
Mayor Sessions called the meeting to order at 6:30PM, October 13, 2022.  Those in 
attendance were Brian West, Monty Parks, Nancy DeVetter, Barry Brown, Jay Burke and 
Spec Hosti.  Also attending were Dr. Shawn Gillen, City Manager; Bubba Hughes, City 
Attorney; Tracy O’Connell, City Attorney; Jake Saas, Ellis Painter; George Shaw, Director, 
Community Development; and Jan LeViner, Clerk of Council.   
 
Opening Ceremonies 
     Call to Order 
     Posting of the Colors and Pledge of Allegiance 
     Invocation:  Jan LeViner, Clerk 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss litigation.  Barry 
Brown seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 6-0.   
 
Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 6-0. 
 
Dr. Gillen gave an update on the recent water failure and the Boil Water Advisory.  Dr. 
Gillen went over the timetable of events to include preventative measures for the future.  
The EPD was contacted and will meet with Staff to review procedures and processes.  
Mayor Sessions thanked Dr. Gillen for everything he did to ensure residents were aware 
of the status of the water situation. Michelle Owens asked the residents for 
recommendations on how to reach those who do not have internet for better 
communication.  She recommended everyone sign up for the alerts.     
 
Mayor Sessions read a Proclamation for Tybee Island’s 135th Birthday.   
 
Michelle Owens approached Mayor and Council to give a report on the activities for the 
birthday celebration.  Ms. Owens invited everyone to Memorial Park on Saturday, October 
15, 2022 for a birthday party and picnic in the park.  Other activities are trolley tours of 
Tybee Island and a talent show on November 23, 2022 for Lights Up for Tybee, local talent 
showcase, at Tybee Post Theater.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Owens and her committee 
for their hard work. 
 
Mayor Sessions added the following to the Consent Agenda: 

 Minutes, September 22, 2022 

 Attachments to Minutes, September 22, 2022 

 Minutes, Special Public Hearing, September 28, 2022 

 Travel:  Jamey Rabun:  National Association of RV Parks and Campground's 
Outdoor Hospitality Conference and Expo.  Budge, Travel and Training 555-52-
3500 

 Approve lowest bid RW Allen Construction, City Hall Remodel, $1.7M with 
alternates in the amount of $203,886 

 Ante Litem:  Ryan Longwater.  To reject 
 

- Page 7 -Item #3.



Sarah Jones approached Mayor and Council to give an update on the Tybee Island 

Historical Society.  Ms. Jones informed Mayor and Council of a very special event on 

Tuesday, October 18, 2022 at 10:00AM at the Tybee Island Light Station.  She continued, 

the Historical Society has been honored to collaborate with the Middle Passage Port 

Ceremony Marker Project.  This is to designate Tybee Island as a UNESCO Site of Memory 

for the Middle Passage.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Jones for her hard work. 

If there is anyone wishing to speak to anything on the agenda other than the 
Public Hearings, please come forward.  Please limit comments to no more 
than 5 minutes. 
Dee Matkowski approached Mayor and Council to speak in favor of the proposed STR 
ordinances. 
Clair Reeve and Brook Reeve approached Mayor and Council to speak to the proposed 
STR ordinances.  They would like to be able to apply and receive an STR permit.  Mayor 
Sessions thanked them for their comments. 
Jay Holstrom approached Mayor and Council to speak to the proposed STR ordinances.  
He asked Mayor and Council to do an independent financial study as to STR’s. 
Heather Hoffman approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Hoffman asked Mayor and 
Council to work together, join forces and protect the residents with enforcing the current 
ordinances.  She asked Mayor and Council to vote against the ordinances.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Ms. Hoffman. 
Mack Kitchens approached Mayor and Council to speak to the proposed STR 
ordinances and enforcement.  Mr. Kitchens also stated definitions need to be specific as 
to the residential zones.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Kitchens. 
Steve Buckner approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Buckner stated he is a plaintiff in 
the lawsuit filed by Tybee Alliance against the City.  He is also against the proposed 
ordinances and asked Mayor and Council to protect his community.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Mr. Buckner for his comments. 
Dale Williams approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Williams believes this is a 
compromise and asked Mayor and Council to approve the proposed STR ordinances. 
Corey Jones approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Jones stated he does not believe there 
is a compromise with the proposed ordinances and asked Mayor and Council to take a 
step back and rethink the proposed STR ordinances.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Jones 
for his comments. 
Mindy Hartley approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Hartley spoke against the proposed 
STR ordinances as she feels her property rights are being taken away.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Ms. Hartley. 
Jon Edwards approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Edwards spoke in favor of the 
proposed STR ordinances and asked Mayor and Council to approve.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Mr. Edwards for his comments. 
Debbie Kearney approached Mayor and Council.  She asked Mayor and Council to 
approved the   proposed STR ordinances as there has been a compromise.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Ms. Kearney for her comments. 
Keith Gay approached Mayor and Council.  He asked Mayor and Council to take a step 
back and address the real issues:  noise, trash and parking.  Mr. Gay expressed his 
concerns regarding homestead exemption and enforcement of current ordinances.  Mayor 
Sessions thanked Mr. Gay for his comments. 

- Page 8 -Item #3.



Roger Huff approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Huff recommended taking the 
proposed STR ordinances off the agenda and making only one ordinance in that way 
everything will be defined and clear.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Huff for his comments. 
Don Hartley approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Hartley expressed his concerns with 
the lack of enforcement with the current ordinances.   Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. 
Hartley for his comments. 
Libby Bacon approached Mayor and Council and expressed her opposition to the 
proposed STR ordinances.  Ms. Bacon asked Mayor and Council to rethink their approach.  
Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Bacon for her comments. 
Sherry Ward approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Ward visits the Island several times 
a year and supports the Island financially.  She further stated there is a benefit to the 
community with STR’s as asked Mayor and Council to vote no for the proposed STR 
ordinances. 
Matt Campbell approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Campbell stated he does have a 
STR and hopes to retire on the Island.  Mr. Campbell asked Mayor and Council why they 
are promoting the Island and tourism and then approving the proposed STR ordinances.  
Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Campbell for his comments. 
Cody Gay approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Gay stated enforcement is the problem.  
Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Gay for his comments. 
Kathryn Williams approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Williams stated enforcement 
is an issue.  She asked Mayor and Council to enforce the Master Plan and LDC and 
approve the proposed STR ordinances.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Williams for her 
comments. 
Tony Vasquez approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Vasquez expressed his thoughts 
regarding neighbors as Tybee has good neighbors who come together when there is a 
problem.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Vasquez for his comments. 
Joshua Morris approached Mayor and Council to express his concerns with 
enforcement.  Mayor Sessions thanked Mr. Morris for his comments.  
Beth Sheffield approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Sheffield asked Mayor and Council 
to rewrite the proposed STR ordinances before them tonight and possibly looked at 
zoning options for STR’s.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. Sheffield for her comments. 
Anna Butler approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Butler asked Mayor and Council to 
limit STR’s and find a way to allow property owners who do not currently have a permit 
to have an opportunity to get one, possibly with a waitlist.  Mayor Sessions thanked Ms. 
Butler for her comments.  
Carol Seckinger approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Seckinger explained she rents 
and monitors her property and would like one day to retire on Tybee.  Mayor Sessions 
thanked Ms. Seckinger for her comments. 
 
Barry Brown left the meeting due to an emergency. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  Spec Hosti seconded.  
Vote was unanimous to approve, 5-0. 
 
Public Hearings 
Site Plan: 301 First Street-requesting to add golf cart rentals & restaurant-
Liran Portal.  George Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw explained the 
petitioner purchased the Sugar Shack and it is their intent to keep the ice cream store; get 

- Page 9 -Item #3.



rid of the restaurant, as they do not plan to serve any other food; and add a bike and golf 
cart rental.  Staff recommended approval and the Planning Commission recommended 
approval 4-2.  It is the petitioner’s intent to improve the parking area with landscaping 
and trees.  There will also be designated parking for the apartments as it is a mixed-use 
building and a drainage plan is not required.   Beth Sheffield approached Mayor and 
Council.  Ms. Sheffield expressed her concerns with parking on the property and if there 
is sufficient parking for the golf carts. Mr. Shaw addressed Ms. Sheffield’s concerns stating 
there is ample parking on the property.  He continued, the Code requires off-street spaces.  
Mayor Sessions stated if Mayor and Council approved this item, there could be a caveat 
for appropriate parking as defined in the Code.  Mr. Shaw confirmed.  Keith Gay 
approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Gay stated he does not understand how the parking 
spaces can be used for the last twenty years and now dispute with new ownership.  He 
further commented the new owners should not be short changed parking spaces.  
Murray Marshall approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Marshall clarified the parking 
spaces as not only the property owner but also patrons and beach goers can use them.  
These spaces, in his opinion, have been there for a long time and should be allowed.  Dee 
Matkowski approached Mayor and Council.  Ms. Matkowski confirmed there are 
apartments above the Sugar Shack.  Mr. Shaw confirmed, as there are two (2) apartments.  
Ms. DeVetter asked Mr. Shaw how many parking spaces are required.  Mr. Shaw 
responded, 15 parking spaces required for the business and apartments.  The Site Plan 
shows 18 spaces and two (2) bicycle racks.  Mr. Hosti stated the Sugar Shack has been in 
that location for over 50 years.  Monty Parks made a motion to approve.  Spec Hosti 
seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve 5-0. 
 
Site Plan: 402 First Street-requesting to add a lift to front deck -Jason 
Dubuque.  George Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw explained the 
Back River Brewery recently opened above the Agave Restaurant and due to the heavy 
items that need to be taken to their business they would like to add a lift.  There is not 
space to install a full elevator outside without using existing parking spaces so the 
petitioner is seeking approval to install a lift.  When supplies are delivered, the lift will be 
used but during business hours, the lift will remain in the up position so the parking 
spaces can be used.  Mr. Shaw stated Staff recommended approval and the Planning 
Commission approved unanimously.   Mr. Parks shared his concerns regarding the weight 
of the materials and if the deck is rated.  Mr. Shaw responded the City did not look.  Chief 
Kendrick approached.    He stated when a business changes ownership, it is a State Law 
it must be inspected, a Life Safety Inspection, for the building.  Mr. Hosti asked for 
clarification.  Chief Kendrick stated everything has to be inspected.  Dr. West stated the 
petitioner had a safety inspection prior to leasing of the property.  Don Hartley 
approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. explained the State Fire Marshal 
approves/disapproves the elevators/lifts.   Monty Parks made a motion to approve.  
Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve 5-0.   
 
Tree Appeal: -402 6th Street-appeal of actions Sec. 7-100 regarding denial of 
tree permit-Jone Bremer.  George Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw 
stated the petitioner submitted a request for a permit to remove 21 significant trees.  The 
permit was denied and she subsequently submitted a request for a pool and an addition 
to her residence permit.  The trees that are in the footprint of the new addition were 
approve for removal as well as the pool permit.  Later, it was discovered there is a tree in 

- Page 10 -Item #3.



the footprint of the proposed pool that was not shown on the tree survey.  Mr. Shaw 
continued, the pool permit was rescinded but the addition to the home was allowed.  He 
stated, while you can remove a significant tree to make reasonable beneficial economic 
use of the property, a pool does not reach that threshold.  Staff recommended denial and 
the Planning Commission recommended denial, 3-2.  Mr. Hosti asked if the tree is 
removed, will there still be in compliance.  Mr. Shaw confirmed.  Ms. DeVetter asked why 
the tree was not shown on the initial tree survey.  Mr. Shaw responded per the surveyor, 
it was left off.  Dr. West asked if a tree could be planted in its place.  Mr. Shaw stated no, 
not with the way the ordinance is written, as you cannot remove a significant tree.  Mr. 
Parks asked Mr. Hughes, if the tree was removed, could the petitioner plant another tree.  
Mr. Hughes stated, he could ask that question to the petitioner, who is present.  Mr. Burke 
asked why the City granted a pool permit without actually visiting the site.  Mr. Shaw 
stated the arborist did visit the site but did not have the pool permit with him and did not 
realize the tree was in the footprint of the proposed pool.  Jone Bremer approached Mayor 
and Council. Ms. Bremer discussed the Planning Commission Meeting, as she does not 
feel they asked her pertinent questions.  She read from a prepared statement.  Ms. Bremer 
gave a brief history of the property to include the adjoining property, which she 
purchased.  It is her intent to put an addition on to the existing residence and put in a 
pool to accommodate her growing family.  She continued, she does not have a STR permit 
and does not have any intentions to do so.  Ms. Bremer explained she was given a pool 
permit on May 4, 2022, which has since been revoked.  She stated the trees that were to 
be removed were marked for the pool and for the addition.  Twenty-one trees were marked 
and after review, it was determined only sixteen trees needed to be removed and only one 
of those trees is in the footprint of the pool.  Ms. Bremer stated she submitted a second 
tree removal permit and a topo at that time, which identified the trees to be removed as 
well as the marks that remained on the trees.  She again stated all trees were marked for 
removal and did not realize until an on-site visit that the tree was not on the topo although 
it is noted on both applications.  Greg Harrison approached.  Mr. Harrison stated he is a 
surveyor and it was an oversight that the tree was not on the survey.  She is asking Mayor 
and Council to consider approval.  Janna Martin, Attorney, approached Mayor and 
Council.  Ms. Martin stated this all comes down to whether the one (1) tree can be removed 
and whether the pool meets the Code requirement under 7-060, being a reasonable, 
beneficial, economic use of the property which it does.  Ms. Martin continued, her client 
has met all the legal requirements and if denied, she will not be allowed to have 
reasonable, beneficial and economic use of her property.   Patrick Murphy approached 
Mayor and Council.  Mr. Murphy stated the petitioner purchased the adjoining property 
so the pool could be placed in the center of the home site, as she would like to enhance 
the property.  Ms. Bremer stated she does not want to cut the tree but there is no other 
location on the property for the pool.  She complimented Mr. Shaw and Ms. Schaaf for 
their hard work and professionalism.  Roger Huff approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. 
Huff recommended Mayor and Council approval this agenda request as the pool would 
increase the property value. Mr. Hosti stated this is a unique situation where the addition 
will be on the second lot as the original house sits on another lot.  Spec Hosti made a 
motion to approve.  Jay Burke seconded.  Voting in favor were Brian West, Monty Parks, 
Jay Burke and Spec Hosti.  Voting against was Nancy DeVetter.  Motion to approve, 4-1. 
 
Variance: 8 Eighteenth Place-requesting to add elevator in side setback-Judy 
& Greg Hirsch. George Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Shaw stated Mr. 

- Page 11 -Item #3.



Hirsch currently has a medical issue that is creating mobility issues.  The petitioners are 
requesting a variance to add an elevator in the side setback.  Mr. Shaw stated this type of 
request does not meet the City’s technical definition of a variance and Staff recommended 
approval as the Planning Commission did also by a unanimous vote.  Josh Yellen 
approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Yellen stated he is representing the petitioner and 
gave a brief description of the elevator and location.  He is asking for approval as this is a 
hardship.  Nancy DeVetter made a motion to approve.  Brian West seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 5-0. 
 
Variance: requesting to impact marshland to maintain right of way – Polk 
Street right of way & 318 Polk Street – Zone C2-EC- 4-0025-01-005Y & 005Z 
- City of Tybee & Michael Leonard.  George Shaw approached Mayor and Council.  
Mr. Shaw stated this has been before Mayor and Council five (5) times.  This is a City 
street as well as the driveway for the Leonard’s.  Both parties are requesting this variance 
that will improve the driving surface as it is covered at high tide.  Staff is recommending 
approval as well as the Planning Commission unanimously. Mr. Hosti confirmed DNR 
has approved.  Mr. Shaw confirmed.  Bill Glass approached Mayor and Council.  Mr. Glass, 
Attorney, representing the Leonard’s stated the Leonard’s could not be present due to the 
impending tides.  He is asking for Mayor and Council to approve this request.   Spec 
Hosti made a motion to approve.  Jay Burke seconded.  Vote was unanimous to 
approve, 5-0. 
 
Consideration of Ordinances, Resolutions 
Second Reading:  2022-09, Sec 66-8, Regulation of Motorized Carts within 

the City of Tybee Island.  Monty Parks stated that the ordinance sets the standard 

now at 70 decibels and would like to see it changed over to carts that are fuel injected or 

electric which takes it off meter and over to engine style.  Monty Parks then made a 

motion to approve changing from decibel reading to engine style.  Brian West seconded.  

Vote was unanimous to approve, 5-0. 

Jay Burke recused himself. 

Second Reading: 2022-10, STR Ordinance, to amend Sec 34-260, 34-261, 34-
262, and 34-265.  To add Sec 34-267, 34-268 and 34-270.  Monty Parks made 
a motion to approve as presented with two exceptions:  (1)  Sec 34-268(A), strike sentence 
starting at the words “property management” to the end of the sentence and (2) send this 
entire ordinance to the Planning Commission to start the process of making it in line with 
the other ordinances and part of Zoning Ordinances.  Nancy DeVetter seconded.  
Discussion: Mr. Hughes confirmed.  Dr. West asked if the version in the packet before 
them needs to be changed.  Mr. Hugh confirmed.   Voting in favor were Nancy DeVetter 
and Monty Parks.  Voting against were Brian West and Spec Hosti.  Mayor Session voted 
in favor.  Motion approved 3-2.  Jay Burke recused. 
 
Second Reading:  2022-11; Article 4, Sec I, 4-050(A)(B) and (C); Sec II, 
Definitions; Sec III, Notice of and Abandonment of Nonconforming Use; Sec 
IV, Allowances; Sec V, Caps in Certain Zoning Districts; and Sec I, Permits 
Prohibited Exception for Owner Occupied Location (Z-2). Monty Parks made 
a motion to approve as presented with two exceptions:  (1)  In Sec 3, Abandonment:  Staff 

- Page 12 -Item #3.



to work on appeal process for natural disasters, fire and other catastrophic events and (2)  
Sec 3, Abandonment and Sec 4, Allowances, have an effective date of May 1, 2023.  Nancy 
DeVetter seconded.  Voting in favor were Nancy DeVetter and Monty Parks.  Voting 
against were Brian West and Spec Hosti.  Mayor Session voted in favor.  Motion approved 
3-2.  Jay Burke recused. 
 
Second Reading:  2022-12 Parking in Short Term Rental locations (Z-3).  
Monty Parks made a motion to continue for further development.  Nancy DeVetter 
seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 4-0.   
 
Certain Building Permit Holders Ability to Obtain STR Permit FOR 
DISCUSSION ONLY.  Mr. Hughes stated at the request of Council, he was asked to 
develop an ordinance regarding individuals that have secured the building permits before 
the moratorium intending to have structures built or renovated that would become STR’s 
and could apply for a permit.  A search would have to take place to find those building 
permits, which were issued.  He is asking Council to submit their comments prior to this 
going to the Planning Commission.  Ms. DeVetter confirmed knowing the date of the 
application and completion to find the real number.  Mr. Shaw stated he can run a report 
on permits but will need a period on renovations, as new builds will be easier to 
determine.  Mr. Hosti stated, when he proposed this, his thought was to go back to August 
2021. Mr. Hosti recommended Council and Staff send recommendations to Mr. Hughes.   
 
Council, Officials and City Attorney Considerations and Comments 
Bubba Hughes 

 Status of Moratorium:  Mr. Hughes stated if he is correct, Mayor and Council 
approved on second reading, 2022-04, Sec 6, as no further permits in R-1, R-2, R-
1B will be issued.  Therefore, the Moratorium is officially ended, as there are 
ordinances put in its place.  Mr. Parks confirmed with Mr. Hughes, in the re-
permitting or the transfer of a permit during the sale of a house, there is no time 
limit on the application for the new permit.  Mr. Hughes responded, they need to 
notify the City within seven (7) days of ownership change and the new owner would 
make application, if they want.  The Planning Commission will address this date.     

 Wittendorf Settlement for Ratification:  Mr. Hughes discussed the 
settlement to include payments by the City and GIRMA.  The Release will become 
part of the City record.  Monty Parks made a motion to accept the terms of the 
Agreement.  Nancy DeVetter seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 4-0.   

 
Monty Parks made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss personnel, 
litigation and real estate. Brian West seconded.  Vote was unanimous to approve, 4-0. 
 
Monty Parks made a motion to return to regular session.  Spec Hosti seconded.  Vote 
was unanimous to approve, 4-0. 
 
Brian West made a motion to adjourn.  Monty Parks seconded.  Vote was unanimous 
to approve, 4-0. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:45PM 
 

- Page 13 -Item #3.



 

 
 
_________________________ 
Janet LeViner, MMC 
Clerk of Council 

- Page 14 -Item #3.



File Attachments for Item:

4. Attachments to Minutes, October 13, 2022

- Page 15 -Item #4.



- Page 16 -Item #4.



- Page 17 -Item #4.



- Page 18 -Item #4.



- Page 19 -Item #4.



- Page 20 -Item #4.



- Page 21 -Item #4.



- Page 22 -Item #4.



- Page 23 -Item #4.



File Attachments for Item:

7. City Hall Renovation Contract:  RW Allen Construction, LLC

- Page 24 -Item #7.



 A 1  

AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA 

FOR CITY HALL RENOVATION PROJECT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of _____________, 2022, by and between the 

City of Tybee Island, Georgia, hereinafter called the “Owner” at P.O. Box 2749, Tybee Island, 

GA 31328, and RW Allen Construction, LLC, hereinafter called the “Contractor”, of 1015 Broad 

Street, Augusta, Georgia 30901. 

  

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, has heretofore solicited proposals for all 

material, work and improvements and for the doing of all things included within the hereinafter 

specified City Hall Renovation more fully described in the ITB No.: 2022-769. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, did find that the Contractor was the 

lowest responsible, responsive and preferred offeror  for the hereinafter specified City Hall 

Renovation (hereinafter “Project”). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of their mutual promises, covenants,  

undertakings, and agreements, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I - WORK TO BE DONE BY CONTRACTOR 

Contractor agrees, at i t s  own cost and expense, to do all the work and furnish all the 

labor, materials, equipment, and other property necessary to satisfactorily do, construct, install, 

and complete all work and improvements for the City Hall Renovation Project for the City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia (Project), all in full accordance with, and in compliance with and as 

required by the hereinafter specified Contract Documents for said Contract, and to do, at its own 

cost and expense, all other things required of the Contractor by said Contract Documents for said 

work. 

 

ARTICLE II- CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

The Contract Documents herein named include all of the following component parts, all 

of which are as fully a part of this Contract as if herein set out verbatim, subject to all stated 

exclusions, or, if not attached, as if hereto attached: 

 

1. Invitation to Bid ITB No. 2022-769 and any Addendum(s) thereto 

2. Contractor’s Proposal including all attachments and addendum thereto 

3. General Conditions of the Contract 

4. Technical Requirements 

5. Contract Drawings / Bid Plans  

6. All Bonds, Insurance Certificates and Insurance Policies mentioned or referred  

to in the foregoing documents 

7. Any and all other documents or papers included or referred to in any of the foregoing 

documents including all Permits 

8. Any and all Addenda to the foregoing, all of which are on file with the Owner 

 

 

- Page 25 -Item #7.



 A 2  

ARTICLE III - CONTRACT AMOUNT 

 

The Contractor agrees to receive and accept the following unit prices and lump sum 

prices as full compensation for furnishing all materials and equipment and for doing all 

work contemplated and embraced in this agreement, and for all loss or damage  arising  

out of the nature  of the  work  aforesaid, or from  the  action  of the  elements, or from  any  

unforeseen difficulties or obstructions which  may arise to be encountered in the prosecution 

of the work until its acceptance by the Owner, and for all risks of every description connected 

with the work, and for well and faithfully completing the whole and entire work and Project, 

in the manner and according to and in compliance with the Contract  Documents as directed  

by the C i t y o r  i t s  Engineer  in accordance with these documents, and for any and all other 

things required  by the Contract  Documents. 

 

As a result of the solicitation process and the proposal of Contractor, the parties have 

agreed that the total amount payable under the contract for all work, equipment and 

materials is $1,882,027.00 which sum reflects the base bid and alternatives 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6. 

 

ARTICLE IV- STARTING AND COMPLETION 

 

The  Contractor  shall,  and  agrees  to,  commence  work for the Project no later than 

_________________, 2022, and to complete fully all work required by the Contract Documents 

to the point of Final Acceptance by the Owner within ____  Calendar days. 

 

ARTICLE V- PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 

 

Owner agrees with said Contractor to employ, and does hereby employ, the said 

Contractor to provide the material and do all the work and do all other things herein above 

mentioned according to the terms and conditions hereinafter contained or referred to, for the 

prices aforesaid, and hereby contracts to pay Contractor at the time, in the manner and upon the 

conditions set forth or referred to in the Contract Documents; and the Owner and the Contractor 

for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, do hereby agree to 

the full performance of the covenants herein contained. 

 

ARTICLE VI-INVALIDITY AND SEVERABILITY 
 

The invalidity of any provision included in any of the Contract Documents shall not be 

deemed to impair or affect in any manner the validity and enforceability of the remainder of the 

Contract Documents, and in such event, all the other provisions of the Contract Documents shall 

continue in full force and effect as if such invalid provision had never been included therein. 

Owner and Contractor agree that, in such event, the Contract Documents shall be reformed to 

replace the stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that 

achieves, to the maximum extent possible, the intention of the stricken provision. 

 

ARTICLE V I I - CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM SELECTION 

 

The Contract Documents shall be construed and controlled by and under the laws of the 

State of Georgia without regard to conflicts of laws principles.  Further, any dispute arising out 

of or concerning the Contract Documents, or any action or inaction performed thereunder, shall 

- Page 26 -Item #7.



 A 3  

be adjudicated in either (a) the United States Court for the Southern District of Georgia, 

Savannah Division; or (b) the State or Superior Courts of Chatham County, Georgia, and the 

parties waive any defenses of personal and/or subject matter jurisdiction to the aforesaid venues. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Instrument to be 

executed in two original counterparts the day and year first above written. 

 

      RW ALLEN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

(Contractor) 

 

By:  _________________________________
 

 

It's:  ______________________________________ 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me 

this _____ day of __________, 2022. 

 

   

 Notary Public 

My commission expires:  

 (NOTARIAL SEAL) 

CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA 

(Owner) 

 

By:  _________________________________
 

 

It's:  ______________________________________ 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me 

this _____ day of __________, 2022. 

 

   

 Notary Public 

My commission expires:  

 (NOTARIAL SEAL) 

 

IMPORTANT NOTE:  If the Contractor is a corporation, the legal name of the corporation 

shall be set forth above together with a signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign 

Contracts on behalf of the corporation; if Contractor is a co-partnership, the true name of the 

firm shall be set forth above together with the signatures of all the partners; and if Contractor 

is an individual, his signature shall be placed above.    If signature  is by an agent  other  than  

an officer  of a corporation or  a  member   of  a  partnership, a  power-of-attorney must  be  

attached   hereto. Signature of Contractor shall also be acknowledged before a Notary Public 

or other person authorized by law to execute  such acknowledgment. 

 

 

- Page 27 -Item #7.



 

CERTIFICATE TO BE EXECUTED IF CONTRACTOR IS A CORPORATION 
 

I, ____________________ certify that I am the                                                            of the 

Corporation named as Contractor hereinabove; that by Resolution of the Board of Directors at 

a 

                        meeting held on _____________ ,  20           , a Resolution was passed giving 

authority to                                                             to sign the foregoing Contract on behalf of 

the Contractor; that said officer was then                               of said corporation by authority 

of its governing body and is within the scope of its corporated powers and said power has not 

since been revoked. 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Secretary 

 

Date:  _________________ 

 

(Corporate Seal) 

 

County: _______________ 

 

State:  ________________ 

 

- Page 28 -Item #7.



  1  

NOTICE OF AWARD 

 

DATE:  ____________________ 

 

TO:  RW ALLEN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

 

PROJECT:  CITY O F  TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, CITY HALL RENOVATION 

PROJECT 

 

You are notified that your Bid dated September 29, 2022, for the above Contract has been 

considered.  You are the apparent successful bidder and will be awarded a contract for City of 

Tybee Island, Georgia CITY HALL RENOVATION Project upon fully conforming with the 

following requirements for award. 

 

Within seven (7) days of the date of this Notice of Award, you must deliver to the 0WNER  

the  enclosed cont ract   documents, f u l l y   executed,  signed  and  witnessed,  and  a Certificate 

of Insurance as follows: 

 

2 originals - Contract 

1 original  - Performance Bond 

1 original  - Payment Bond 

1 original  - Certificate of Insurance certifying compliance with all 

insurance requirements specified in the Contract 

Documents 

 

Within ten (10) days after receipt of the above documents, OWNER will return to you one 

(1) fully executed original of the Contract.  You may obtain two additional free copies of 

plans and specifications upon request. 

 

You will be notified of the time and place for a preconstruction conference; your proposed 

work schedule must be delivered to the OWNER at that time. 

 

Failure to deliver the aforementioned contract documents and insurance certificate within 

the time specified will entitle OWNER to consider your bid abandoned, to annul this Notice 

of Award, and to declare your Bid Security forfeited. 

 

City of Tybee Island, Georgia (OWNER) 

 

 

By:  _    

(Authorized Signature)  (Typed Name)  

 

 

 _______________________

 (Title) 

- Page 29 -Item #7.



  1  

NOTICE TO PROCEED 

 

TO:  RW ALLEN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

 

DATE:  ___________________________________ 

 

PROJECT:  CITY HALL RENOVATION PROJECT 

 

 

You are hereby notified to commence work at ______________________ in accordance with 

the Contract dated _______________________, and you are to fully and satisfactorily complete 

the work to the point of Final Acceptance within 90 days of commencement of work. 

 

 

The City of Tybee Island, Georgia (OWNER) 

 

 

By    

(SIGNATURE) 

 

 

(TITLE) 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

 

Receipt of the above NOTICE TO PROCEED is hereby acknowledged this               

day o f  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ,  2 0 2 2 .   

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      RW ALLEN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 

       (CONTRACTOR) 

 

 

 

(TITLE) 

- Page 30 -Item #7.



/  1  

WAIVER AND RELEASE OF LIEN 

 

FROM:                                                                                                                                               

 

TO:            City of Tybee Island, Georgia (Owner of Project)  

 

PROJECT:  CITY OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, CITY HALL RENOVATION  

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 

1.         The undersigned, having been employed by The City of Tybee Island, Georgia, to 

furnish labor and/or materials for the referenced Project, does hereby waive and release any and 

all lien and claim or right to lien and claim against the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, on the 

referenced Project on account of labor or materials, or both furnished for the referenced Project. 

 

2.         The undersigned further certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief, there are 

no unsatisfied or outstanding claims of any character arising out of the furnishing of labor 

and/or materials for the referenced Project. 

 

3.         The undersigned further agree that, after execution of this document, it will defend at its 

expense, and save the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, harmless from any and all claims or 

liens arising out of the undersigned's furnishing of labor and/or materials for the referenced 

Project. 

 

4.         The undersigned has executed this document in order to induce the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, to make final payment to and in no way acts as a release of any claim the undersigned 

may have against parties other than the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, arising out of the 

furnishing of labor and/or materials for the referenced Project. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has signed and sealed this instrument this 

____ day of ______________, 2022. 

 

 

 

STATE OF  

COUNTY OF  _ 

 

Personally appeared before me the undersigned Notary Public in and for said County and State 

_____________________, who is known to me and who, after being duly sworn, deposes and 

says that the facts stated in the above affidavit are true. 

 

 

 

 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

  

- Page 31 -Item #7.



/  1  

4860-0806-1754.1 

 

AFFIDAVIT 

Contractor Affidavit Under OCGA 36-91-21(e) 

Personally appeared before the undersigned officer duly authorized to administer oaths, 

______________________ who, being duly sworn, states as follows: 

The undersigned hereby execute under oath this affidavit verifying compliance with the provisions of 

O.C.G.A. § 36-91-21(e) and attest that he has not directly or indirectly made any effort by himself or 

otherwise to prevent or attempt to prevent competition in the bidding or proposals by any means 

whatsoever.  The undersigned further attests that he has not attempted to prevent or endeavored to 

prevent anyone from making a bid or proposal by any means whatever nor caused or induced anyone to 

withdraw a bid or proposal for the work.  The undersigned further attests that he is the sole agent or 

officer who have acted for or represented the corporation in bidding for or procuring the contract.   

 

This oath is made in order to be filed with the officer whose duty it is to make payment under the 

contract.   

  THIS ___ day of ________________________, 2022. 

 

      ______________________________________________ 

 

      ______________________________________________ 

      Title 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, 

this ____ day of ___________, 2022. 

 

____________________________________ 

Notary Public 
 

 
 

- Page 32 -Item #7.



File Attachments for Item:

8. Southeast Corrections, LLC - Probations Services

- Page 33 -Item #8.



- Page 34 -Item #8.



- Page 35 -Item #8.



- Page 36 -Item #8.



- Page 37 -Item #8.



- Page 38 -Item #8.



- Page 39 -Item #8.



- Page 40 -Item #8.



- Page 41 -Item #8.



- Page 42 -Item #8.



- Page 43 -Item #8.



- Page 44 -Item #8.



- Page 45 -Item #8.



- Page 46 -Item #8.



- Page 47 -Item #8.



- Page 48 -Item #8.



File Attachments for Item:

9. Out of State Travel Request, Tybee Island Fire Department:  Capt. Matt Bowen, November 1 

- 2, to attend the SC Fire Academy and to use a City vehicle

- Page 49 -Item #9.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: October 27
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Out of state travel using city vehicle for Capt. Matt Bowen, Nov. 1-2, 2022, to Columbia,
South Carolina for South Carolina Fire Academy event. All other expenses paid by event. 

Approval of Out of state travel using city vehicle for Capt. Matt Bowen, Nov. 1-2, 2022, to
Columbia, South Carolina for South Carolina Fire Academy event. All other expenses paid
by event. 

Letter to M Bowen.pdf

- Page 50 -Item #9.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1619018/Letter_to_M_Bowen.pdf


 

 

 

nutrien.com 1460 Columbia Nitrogen Rd Augusta, Ga 30901 

 

 

 

October 15, 2022  

 
Matthew Paynter 
Emergency Response and Preparedness Manager 
1460 Columbia Nitrogen RD 
Augusta, Ga 30901 
 
 
 
Captain Matt Bowen: 

Nutrien is one of the world’s largest producers and distributors of potash, nitrogen and 
phosphate products for agricultural, industrial and feed customers world-wide. Part of our 
mission is to be the safest company in the world. To achieve this goal, we have Emergency 
Response Teams located in many of our production facilities. These teams train to respond to 
fires, hazardous materials, medical, and technical rescue needs.  

We are always looking for opportunities to improve our response teams and one way we 
accomplish this is through our ERT Competition event. Each year teams from across North 
America and Trinidad, come together to compete in seven different events. To keep this 
process far, we recruit subject matter experts from outside our organization, to judge each team. 
Due to your subject matter knowledge, I am hoping you could participate as a Judge for us this 
year.  

The event dates are November 1-3, 2022. We will be hosting the competition at the South 
Carolina Fire Academy. While we don’t pay judges, we do cover all your expenses. This 
includes a room at the Hilton Convention Center, transportation expenses and all meals.       

Thank you for your consideration to supporting us with this event.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Matthew Paynter BS NRP 

706-564-8118 
Matt.paynter@nutrien.com 

  

 

- Page 51 -Item #9.



File Attachments for Item:

10.  First Reading:  2022-14, Sec 2-263. Beach Task Force - Disband and Repeal

- Page 52 -Item #10.



ORDINANCE NO. 14-2022 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, AND TO DISBAND AND REPEAL 

THE EXISTING ORDINANCE SECTION 2-263 ESTABLISHING 
THE BEACH TASK FORCE 

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, (the “City”) is authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the 

Constitution of the State of Georgia to adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and 

improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, and 

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, 

Georgia, is the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 

WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its 

police and home rule powers, and 

 

WHEREASE, the City of Tybee Island established a Beach Task Force and 

codified the existence of the Beach Task Force in Section 2-263, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Beach Task Force has served the City for many years and 

provided valuable input, research, and recommendations relating to those matters 

addressed in the ordinance establishing the Beach Task Force, and 

 

WHEREAS, circumstances regarding beach management have changed over 

the years so that the Beach Task Force has completed its tasks with skill and 

professionalism on behalf of the City, and 

 

WHEREAS, it is further resolved that the City Mayor and Council express 

their appreciation and gratitude to all current and prior members of the Beach Task 

Force for their valuable services to the City, its residents and visitors, and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the conclusion of the City Council following the input from 

the Beach Task Force that the Beach Task Force has served its purposes and should 

therefore be disbanded and the existing ordinance repealed and removed from the 

code of ordinances. 

- Page 53 -Item #10.



NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained by the Mayor and Council duly 

assembled, that the Code of Ordinances will be amended as follows: 

 

SECTION 1 
 

Section 2-263 shall be repealed in its entirety and the previously existing 

Beach Task Force be and is hereby dissolved. 

 

SECTION 2 
 

This ordinance need not be codified upon the removal of the current ordinance 

from the next publication of a supplement by Municode, however a record of the 

Beach Task Force and this repeal shall be maintained as part of the records of the 

City. 

 

SECTION 3 
 

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly 

repealed. 

 

SECTION 4 
 

It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the 

provisions of this ordinance shall become effective upon second reading. 

 

 
ADOPTED THIS  DAY OF  , 2022. 

 

 

 
MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:    

ENACTED:   

- Page 54 -Item #10.



File Attachments for Item:

11. Bubba Hughes:  Proposed Ordinance, 2022-15, Hardships Exceptions - FOR DISCUSSION 

ONLY

- Page 55 -Item #11.



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-2022 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF TYBEE ISLAND, GEORGIA, SO AS TO ADDRESS SITUATIONS WHERE 

INDIVIDUALS RESIDE ON PROPERTY AND DUE TO ADVANCED AGE, PHYSICAL 

INFIRMITIES OR DISABILITIES, MEDICAL RESTRICTIONS AND SIMILAR 

CONSTRAINTS REQUIRE PROPERTY MODIFICATIONS SUCH THAT RELIEF IS 

WARRANTED AS AN EXCEPTION TO ORDINARY CODE REQUIREMENTS WHICH DO 

NOT NECESSARILY AMOUNT TO A “HARDSHIP” TO THE PROPERTY, AS OPPOSED 

TO THE INDIVIDUAL 

 

WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

authorized under Article 9, Section 2, Paragraph 3 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia to 

adopt reasonable ordinances to protect and improve the public health, safety, and welfare of the 

citizens of Tybee Island, Georgia, and 

 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority for the City of Tybee Island, Georgia, is 

the Mayor and Council thereof, and 

 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to adopt ordinances under its police and home 

rule powers, and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council receives requests to authorize relief in the form of a variance 

from various requirements in the land development code, including setbacks where assistance 

devices are needed to be installed in the setback or other similar relief methods are required to 

accommodate limitations upon the owner or occupant’s ability which is limited due to illness, 

injuries, advanced age, or other circumstances; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to permit the reasonable beneficial use and enjoyment of  property 

by an individual with continuing physical or other infirmities, an exception to the usual building 

requirements, such as setback requirements, or similar restrictions is required in order for the 

owner or occupant to have reasonable beneficial use of the property which is the subject matter of 

an exception application; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ordained as follows: 

 That the Code of Ordinances _____________, be amended so as to provide as follows: 

 

SECTION 1 

 This ordinance creates a process to deal with requests for “exceptions” to zoning and/or 

other ordinances in  circumstances where the owner or an occupant’s physical limitations require 

- Page 56 -Item #11.



 2 

or make appropriate the granting of relief without requiring a hardship to the property so as to 

justify a variance under other provisions of the Code.  The city manager, or his or her designee, 

following the recommendation by the head of the planning and zoning, or other appropriate 

department, is authorized to grant or permit exceptions to the extent appropriate to the situation 

confronting the individual, owner or occupant; however, such an exception shall only be to the 

extent required from the strict application of any ordinance or building code requirement in order 

to secure or continue reasonable beneficial use of the property.  Issues of accessibility in particular 

shall authorize such a request and the exception.  In the event the city manager, or his or her 

designee, and/or head of the planning and zoning department denies a request for an exception, or 

the full extent of a request applied for, the owner or occupant may appeal the decision to the Mayor 

and Council.  A written record of any determination made hereunder shall be made.  The exception 

will expire upon the termination of the issue that necessitated the original exception.  Only in cases 

where structural damage to the main building is likely to occur will structures authorized by the 

exception be allowed to remain.  Exceptions as described herein shall not “run with the land”.  

SECTION 2 

 All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are expressly repealed.   

SECTION 3  

 It is the intention of the governing body, and it is hereby ordained, that the provisions of 

this ordinance shall become effective and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances, City of Tybee 

Island, Georgia, and the sections of this ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such 

intention. 

SECTION 4 

 This ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the Mayor and Council pursuant to 

The Code of the City of Tybee Island, Georgia. 

  

 This Ordinance shall become effective on ________ day of __________________, 2022. 

 

ADOPTED THIS       DAY OF                    , 2022. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

MAYOR 

 

- Page 57 -Item #11.



 3 
 

ATTEST: 

 

                                                         

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

 

FIRST READING:   

SECOND READING:   

ENACTED:     

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

572-572-1 Ordinance 2022 – Hardship Exception 8-16-2022 

- Page 58 -Item #11.



File Attachments for Item:

14. Shawn Gillen:  HMGP Excess Funds

- Page 59 -Item #14.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: October 27
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Due to some homeowners opting out of the grant there are excess funds.  These
funds may be dispersed among eligible grant recipients but may not be used for
other purposes.  Any funds not dispersed will be returned to FEMA.

Approval of all eligible excess expenses less 15%

Dispersal of excess funds grant 1.xlsx

- Page 60 -Item #14.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1618465/Dispersal_of_excess_funds_grant_1.pdf


Homeowners Not Participating Eng + Permit Construction
1 1211 5th Avenue 8,671.00$        108,700.00$    
2 136 Lewis Avenue 7,976.00$        99,700.00$      

3
1311 5th Avenue - 
Roberts 11,752.00$      146,900.00$    

4
129 Lewis Avenue - 
Brenner 12,120.00$      151,500.00$    

5
1305 Miller Avenue - 
Losey 10,432.00$      130,400.00$    

6
168 S. Campbell 
Avenue - Kellam 5,945.00$        74,315.00$      

7
1409 Jones Avenue - 
Schumm 9,832.00$        122,900.00$    

66,728.00$      834,415.00$    

Homeowners Participating Eng + Permit Construction

8
116 Lewis Avenue - 
Knudsen 5,195.00$        115,009.00$    

9

127 Lewis Avenue - 
Piper (not requesting 
funds)

-$                -$                

10
134 Lewis Avenue - 
Banister 7,744.00$        96,800.00$      

11 137 Lewis Avenue - Hill 3,716.00$        104,500.00$    

12
153 Lewis Avenue - 
Galloway 7,312.00$        91,400.00$      

23,967.00$         407,709.00$       

Total excess funds
$901,143.00

Dispersal of excess funds

Total excess eligible expenses less 15%
$173,076.02

Remaining excess funds
$728,066.98

- Page 61 -Item #14.



Total
117,371.00$      
107,676.00$      

158,652.00$      

163,620.00$      

140,832.00$      

80,260.00$        

132,732.00$      

901,143.00$      

Total

Total estimate of 
eligible excess 
funds per 
homeowner

Total eligible 
excess 
expenses less 
15%

Total new 
budget per 
homeowner 
(original + 
excess funds 
less 15%)

120,204.00$      37,294.78$          $31,700.56 151,904.56$    

-$                   

-$                      $0.00 -$                  

104,544.00$      62,868.68$          $53,438.38 157,982.38$    

108,216.00$      8,602.00$            $7,311.70 115,527.70$    

98,712.00$        94,853.38$          $80,625.38 179,337.38$    
431,676.00$          203,618.84$       $173,076.02 635,294.84$    

Remaining excess funds
$728,066.98

- Page 62 -Item #14.



File Attachments for Item:

15. Shawn Gillen:  Hotel Motel Water/Sewer Rates

- Page 63 -Item #15.



AGENDA ITEM
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: October 27
 

ATTACHMENTS

 
 
 
 
 

Hotel/Motels request to be charged a water/sewer rate based on lowest
consumption rate. 

No change to current rate structure

Oct 27 Council Meeting - Hotel Water Rates.pdf

- Page 64 -Item #15.

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1617383/Oct_27_Council_Meeting_-_Hotel_Water_Rates.pdf


- Page 65 -Item #15.



- Page 66 -Item #15.



- Page 67 -Item #15.



- Page 68 -Item #15.



- Page 69 -Item #15.



- Page 70 -Item #15.


	Top
	Item #1.	Tybee Island Youth Council
	Item #2.	Proclamation:  Retired Educators Day, November 6, 2022
	Retired Educators Day

	Item #3.	Minutes, October 13, 2022
	20221013Minutes

	Item #4.	Attachments to Minutes, October 13, 2022
	attachments

	Item #5.	Jan  Will:  Train for Tybee
	Item #6.	Pat Leiby:  Indigenous People Program
	Item #7.	City Hall Renovation Contract:  RW Allen Construction, LLC
	City Hall Renovations Contract (4860-0806-1754.1)

	Item #8.	Southeast Corrections, LLC - Probations Services
	Southeast Corrections, LLC - Probations Services

	Item #9.	Out of State Travel Request, Tybee Island Fire Department:  Capt. Matt Bowen, November 1 - 2, to attend the SC Fire Academy and to use a City vehicle
	Fire Dept Out of State Travel Request

	Item #10.	First Reading:  2022-14, Sec 2-263. Beach Task Force - Disband and Repeal
	Ordinance - Repealing BTF 2022-14

	Item #11.	Bubba Hughes:  Proposed Ordinance, 2022-15, Hardships Exceptions - FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
	Ordinance -2022-15 Hardship Exception 8-16-2022

	Item #12.	Barry Brown:  Fire Protection for all Commercial Buildings
	Item #13.	Monty Parks:  Marine Science Center Bathrooms
	Item #14.	Shawn Gillen:  HMGP Excess Funds
	HMGP Excess Funds

	Item #15.	Shawn Gillen:  Hotel Motel Water/Sewer Rates
	Hotel Water Rates

	Bottom

